From: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 11:58 AM
To: jeanette@harder.net

Cc: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Subject: For the Sake of a Child

Non-NU Email

Hi, Dr. Harder. | emailed you sometime ago and did not receive a response; | wanted to email again in case my initial email to you did
not go through. (I've also included more than one email address in this attempt, so my apologies for multiple versions of the email.). My
name is Tara Mitchell, and | am a legal psychologist teaching at Lock Haven University (in Lock Haven, PA). My research focuses on
interpersonal violence, such as rape, stalking, and domestic violence. I've recently begun working with various groups addressing child
sexual assault within the Amish and other Plain communities and have been gathering research on Amish populations specifically.

Someone provided me with a copy of your book For the Sake of a Child, and | was wondering how you and Mr. Hoover vetted the
recommended resources you provide at the end in Appendix B. | noticed Whispering Hope listed, for example. However, Whispering
Hope, has been reported for a variety of things, including not following mandated reporting laws (even though they have acknowledged
they are mandated reporters). Was there a process you and Mr. Hoover followed to vet the facilities in Appendix B? | would like to
further understand how the facilities are operating.

Sincerely,

Tara

Tara L Mitchell, Ph.D. (she/her pronouns)
Professor of Psychology

From: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 1:10 PM
To: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Subject: RE: For the Sake of a Child

Hi Tara.

Sorry for not responding to your earlier email. I don't know what happened — maybe it didn't get to me. I'm glad you tried again.

Yes, it is apparent that I did not vet the recommended resources at the end of our book well enough. Whispering Hope staff have also acknowledged
to me that they understand they are mandated reporters. I think they are doing the best they know how to do, but whether that is good enough, I don't

know. I do not have direct evidence whether they do or do not report. As a professional evaluator/researcher, I would love the opportunity to evaluate
any of the Amish programs. The approach I take is to build relationships with them in hopes that I can influence them in ways that are best for

victims/surviviors.

Thanks for your work and this dialogue,

Jeanette



From: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 1:17 PM
To: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Subject: Re: For the Sake of a Child

Hi, Jeanette. Thank you for your quick response. | noticed this response was from your University of Nebraska - Omaha account. My initial email went to the address
listed in For the Sake of a Child; perhaps it got lost in the internet ether, and | will be happy to use this email address in the future.

Yes, Whispering Hope has quite a reputation in central PA, and it has, indirectly at least, been part of recent child sexual abuse cases in the area. While the individual
criminal cases vary, the gist is that they are aware of their mandated reporting obligations, but do not fulfill them, possibly over because Amish conception of
forgiveness means the abuse can never be mentioned again by anyone. While they have admitted they do know their reporting obligations, but don't follow them, on
the stand, they have been less clear as to why that is. Someone in the Carlisle area of Pennsylvania also posted a rather in-depth analysis of Whispering Hope on
Facebook in May of 2021.

It is unfortunate that anyone from these facilities who took part in the recommendation process you and Mr. Hoover used did not make their practice (vs their policy)
clearer. Several advocates | know of have been very concerned about the recommendation for Whispering Hope and other facilities, which likely operate under the
same principles as Whispering Hope, because of the clear violation of mandated reporting and their silencing of survivors of abuse and violence. Survivors and
advocates, some still Plain and some not, have been working to raise awareness of what the practice in these facilities is like. Have you considered building
partnerships with those survivors and advocates so that you can then in turn build partnerships with the programs with a fuller knowledge of their practice and how
that practice may deviate from their policies?

Sincerely.

Tara

Tara L Mitchell, Ph.D. (she/her pronouns)
Professor of Psychology

From: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 2:33 PM
To: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Subject: RE: For the Sake of a Child

This email originated from outside of LHU.

Yes, I am seeking interviews with survivors and advocates for my current study of crisis/family restoration teams. I am using a case study approach
with the teams as the "case" and learning about the teams from as many perspectives as I can: child protection, law enforcement, judicial, therapists,
healthcare, and the team members themselves. I have done a lot of interviews from those perspectives and now only lack interviews with advocates
and survivors — I am hoping to work on those interviews this summer.

Jeanette



From: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@l|ockhaven.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 8:32 PM
To: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Subject: Re: For the Sake of a Child

Hi, Jeanette. That sounds like an interesting study. I've been focusing primarily on learning more about the vetting process on the facilities due to the anecdotes from
survivors of their role in the continuation of the abuse in Amish communities, particularly their failure to report. Understanding the vetting process used in the book you
and Mr. Hoover wrote helps as | move forward with my own work. You mentioned not vetting the facilities enough in your previous email. How did you vet them?

The anecdotes from survivors about the ways in which the CCls further silence victims, as well as how children and youth agencies collaborate with the CCls in the
silencing is, of course, also a concern. | hope your study can begin to disentangle the various threads to that. | also wish you luck in the process; | am not on
Facebook, but | have had some advocates who are aware | reached out to you contact me today, and there is a #BlockedByDrHarder hashtag now. Even without
being on Facebook myself, | am aware that it is a vital form of communication among the survivors and advocates addressing abuse in Anabaptist faiths, especially
among Amish and Mennonites. Blocking any of them is something that many of them will know about. While my current work is, again, most concerned with the
vetting process for the facilities, | wanted to let you know - whatever led to the #BlockedByDrHarder hashtag - your decision to block some advocates and survivors
likely hindered your ability to build those partnerships with them.

Sincerely,

Tara

Tara L Mitchell, Ph.D. (she/her pronouns)
Professor of Psychology

From: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2022 10:13 PM
To: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Subject: RE: For the Sake of a Child

This email originated from outside of LHU.

I appreciate your respectful dialogue with me today by email, Tara. Like other survivors, I need to find and claim places of safety, and Facebook has
been one of those places for me. I should have not invited people to reach out to me by "message" — I prefer email as you are doing. And either email
address works fine — this one, or jeanette @harder.net.

Also, I will be off the grid for the next few days as I will be visiting several Amish communities.

Good night,

Jeanette



From: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@Ilockhaven.edu>
Sent: Friday, February 25, 2022 10:46 AM

To: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Subject: Re: For the Sake of a Child

Hi, Jeanette. | hope your visits among the Amish communities went well (as | am assuming you will not see this message until you return). | do agree we all need to
find ways to communicate that are safe for everyone involved, and | am happy to continue this dialogue via email.

| am also trying to find a balance between communicating on the issues | am directly involved in - the vetting of the facilities - and those | am not directly involved in -
the study on CCls you are doing. Everyone involved is capable of speaking for themselves, and | do not want to speak for anyone else. But...| am not sure if the plan
you mentioned about finishing interviews over the summer is just your own goal or driven by IRB guidelines, but | wanted to offer my perspective of the response from
advocates (while also trying to stay in my own lane regarding the facilities). It may help as you reach out to advocates and survivors in a way that you find safe.

People in academia, like you and |, have the privilege of access and credibility that comes with having the letters after our names. We are heard even when others are
not. Even when we don't get the access or credibility we would like, we (on average) get more than those without the academic "boost".

Even in academia, | am often amazed at how some voices are seen as more credible than others, even when the others have equal or more knowledge on the topic.
That centering of certain voices over others is even more pronounced when one voice is an academic and the other(s) are not.

While most advocates | know are happy to have people ethically and accurately raise awareness about abuse and violence, they can be frustrated to find themselves
ignored in favor of people with the letters after their names. It is not a reflection on the work of the academics, so much as it is a reflection of their awareness that their
lived experience is being silenced and that academics become the gatekeepers, unintentionally or not, because the academics are the ones being sought out. | think
that is an important context.

There is also a lot of concern about some of your work. One, of course, is the recommendations for facilities in For the Sake of a Child, which is what prompted my
initial email. Another is your upcoming presentation (or presentations) with the head of a CCI known for silencing survivors and an attorney who specializes in
defending people who fail to report when they are mandated to do so (as well as defending those accused of sex crimes). These two examples are part of the same
concern about supporting those who publicly state they have a policy to follow mandated reporting, but do not actually do so in practice, and, in fact, may contribute to
the continuation of abuse.

| share those concerns, which is why | reached out via email in November. | tried again, because of the growing number of concerns people had shared beyond my
initial question regarding the vetting, and the email reached you this time. How, by the way, did you do the vetting? Your initial response was simply that they were not
vetted enough.

For the advocates | am working with, though, their concerns are compounded by the fact that their perspective of abuse in the Amish, Mennonite, and other
Anabaptist faiths is being ignored in favor of perspectives from those in academia. As | understand it, this came to a flashpoint when you commented on a Facebook
post about how CCls and church leaders had mocked and intimidated someone who did follow through on mandated reporting. Your post mentioned that not all CCls
are on the same page, which was dismissive of the reality that many of the advocates face - the CCls, regardless of the page they are on, are part of silencing
victims/survivors. Then you invited the advocates and survivors - whose reality you had just dismissed - to be interviewed for a study on CCls.

| have no knowledge of messages sent to you on Facebook, and | am sorry to hear they changed the safety of Facebook for you. | am aware of several posts in
response to you, though, and it seems that many of the people who responded to your public comment were then blocked. The responses to your public comment
that | am aware of were focused on the ways in which survivors had been affected by their perspective being ignored, as well as your request to have them in your
study after you had just dismissed their concerns. When #BlockedByDrHarder became a part of this dynamic, it only reinforced their perception of being ignored in
favor of the people in existing power structures. For full disclosure, since my initial email to you on Feb 23, others have also responded to your comment and have
continued to respond to the initial post about CCls. The CCl in Lancaster, which Allen Hoover is part of, has acted to silence victims and failed to correctly follow
mandated reporting.

As | said earlier, my focus at this time is on the facilities and the ways in which such power structures can contribute to the continuation of violence and abuse by
presenting a false front. They appear on the surface to be engaged in methods to reduce abuse, but their actions contribute to that abuse (like acknowledging they
are mandated reporters, but failing to report). The advocates | know have the same concemns, but they are compounded by the fact that those concerns are often
dismissed, intentionally or not, by the people around them. Further, they are more likely to be affected by the CCls, as they are working within the communities with
the survivors. As such, they may be more focused on the CCls than on the facilities.

| am sure you did not intend to dismiss and further silence the advocates and survivors doing the work on the ground, so to speak. Unfortunately, your comment did.
At best, it also led them to feel you were demeaning their own contributions to the work by asking to interview them for your study about CCls in the same comment
that you implied the experience of an advocate was unusual. At worst, you appeared to support the existing power structures that have been silencing victims and
survivors. This, combined with your existing work with those CCls, has led to a lack of trust. They question your willingness to truly look at the damage caused by the
CCls. | am not sure if you can still see the comments to your post, as well as the comments to the original post about mocking and intimidating someone who
reported. The ones | have been sent are full of personal experiences with CCls, and they are also clear in their frustration that these experiences do not seem to
matter.



Your dedication to this project on CCls is obvious. You mentioned several other interviews with different perspective holders were already done. | do hope that you are
able to reach out to the advocates and survivors in such a way that the trust needed for such sensitive interviews can be built. With that, | hope that you are able to
gain the information you need to provide clarity on the CCls and their work within the communities they "serve". It's just that, in this case, you are not trying to build

that trust from a "neutral” level; you are trying to build the trust from a level of mistrust. | hope you can all work together to build the partnerships necessary to also
support your partnerships with the Amish programs/facilities/CCls.

Sincerely,

Tara

Tara L Mitchell, Ph.D. (she/her pronouns)

Professor of Psychology

From: Jeanette Harder <jharder @unomaha.edu=
Sent: Tuesday, March 1, 2022 12:05 PM

To: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edus
Subject: RE: For the Sake of a Child

This email originated from outside of LHU.

Hello Tara.

I am flooded with other responsibilities and projects so forgive my brief response. I did not vet the facilities in Appendix B of Allen and my book
other than visiting a couple of them — I should have included that as a disclaimer in the book. I am not necessarily in support of CCI teams — as a
researcher/evaluator, I am seeking to understand them. That research project is inactive due to many other projects being in the queue in front of
them, many of which are not related to Plain communities. When I'm able to resume the crisis team study, I will continue to seek multiple voices and
perspectives, including (and especially) those of survivors and victim advocates.

Thank you,

« Jeanette

From: Mitchell, Tara L. <tmitchel@lockhaven.edu>
Sent: Wednesday, March 2, 2022 10:59 AM

To: Jeanette Harder <jharder@unomaha.edu>
Subject: Re: For the Sake of a Child

Hi, Jeanette. There is no need to apologize for the brief response; | understand how busy we can get with research, teaching, and service projects,
let alone outside responsibilities like family, friends, and community. Thank you for letting me know about the facilities. I'll be able to
move forward with that information in mind.

| wish you luck on your work in evaluating and understanding the CCls, as well as your partnership building with advocates and survivors in the
future. | also wish you luck on all of your other projects!

Sincerely,

Tara

Tara L Mitchell, Ph.D. (she/her pronouns)
Professor of Psychology



